CITY OF
WEST CHICAGO
WHERE HISTORY & PROGRESS MEET
MINUTES
Development Committee
March 12,2012

Approved at 04/09/12 Meeting
Call to Order, Roll Call, and Establishment of a Quorum

Chairman Pineda called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Roll call found Aldermen James Beifuss, Sandy Dimas, H. Ronald Monroe, Ruben
Pineda, John C. Smith, Jr. and Rebecca Stout present.

Also in attendance were Alderman Nanette Connelly and Interim Community
Development Director Robert Hupp.

Approval of Minutes
A. Development Committee of February 13, 2012

Alderman Beifuss made a motion, seconded by Alderman Monroe, to approve the
February 13, 2012 Development Committee Minutes. Alderman Beifuss noted that
on Page 3, last paragraph that “may be” should be one word and the rest of the
sentence should read: “that would be a way to fix the problem where someone
wants a changeable portion but does not want a very large sign due to line....”.
Voting yea: Aldermen Beifuss, Monroe, Dimas, Pineda, Smith and Stout. Voting
nay: 0. Motion carried.

Public Participation — None.
Items for Consent — None.
Items for Discussion

A. Amendments to Article XII of the Zoning Ordinance (Signs) regarding
changeable copy signs

Chairman Pineda requested staff to provide a brief overview. Mr. Hupp stated that the
Committee directed staff to modify the ordinance to allow the type of sign that the church
is proposing so they would not have to go through the variance process. He added that at

Development Committee Minutes
March 12, 2012

Page 1of7 475 Main Street | T (630) 293-2200 | Michael B. Kwasman Donald F. Earley

MAYOR CITY TREASURER

West Chicago, 1llinois F (630) 293-3028

60185 www.westchicago.org | Nancy M. Smith Michael L. Guttman
1

‘ CITY CLERK CITY ADMINISTRATOF



the previous meeting a minimum size was discussed. He commented that it made sense
to limit it to institutions in residential districts rather than open it up to uses in
commercial districts. He noted that the other issue at the meeting was illumination and
concerns about the hours of illumination and the brightness. He noted further that the
proposed amendments would allow a larger changeable copy area in terms of percentage
for institutions in residential districts but restrict the time during which it can be
displayed as well as the brightness. Mr. Hupp commented that he came up with a
formula that favors the smaller area signs to have a larger changeable copy area and the
larger ones to push it down a bit. He added that the table in the packet covers three
existing signs and shows the calculations using the proposed formula. He added further
that the new formula almost matches what the existing signs are. Mr. Hupp stated that he
made the assumption that the three existing signs are acceptable to the community and
are not seen as problems as far as percentage of changeable copy. He added that if that is
not the case, he can take another look at the proposed amendments.

Alderman Beifuss commented that it seems to make sense. He added that the Plan
Commission initially tried to set limits for the illuminated portions of signs but the
proposed formula should make going forward with institutional signs easier for everyone.
He noted that the formula is for institutional signs in residential districts and that for all
other signs the changeable copy portion is limited to a 30% maximum. He noted further
that only white lights are permitted in residential zoning districts. Alderman Beifuss
questioned what happens to the big signs because the percentage of changeable copy goes
down when using the formula. He asked if there is a limit to the changeable copy size for
institutional signs. Mr. Hupp responded that there is a limit but it is not within this
section. He added that the limit for institutional signs in residential districts is 50 square
feet and the commercial sign maximum for a freestanding sign is 84 square feet.
Alderman Beifuss commented that it is good there is an upper limit for the amount of
illumination on a sign. He noted that the maximum illumination is 5,000 candelas and he
asked what that was because it is hard to conceive what it is. Mr. Hupp responded that
the language was taken from the DuPage County ordinance. He commented that there
are two kinds of measures of brightness: 1) the amount of light being emitted if you are
standing in front of the sign, which is what the 5,000 candelas refers to and 2) the amount
of light being emitted if you are standing at the property line and pointing the light meter
at the sign. Alderman Beifuss asked if adding Paragraph C increased the illumination
and Mr. Hupp responded no because it has to meet both standards, Paragraph B and C.
He added that Paragraph C measures what you would see if you were driving by the sign.
Alderman Beifuss stated that he would like comparative information regarding
illumination to be provided to the Plan Commission members, especially for the existing
signs. He noted that Paragraph G limits the hours of illumination and Mr. Hupp
commented that it is the same as the variance for the Park District.

Alderman Monroe commented that the proposed amendments took care of his previous
concerns.

Development Committee Minutes
March 12, 2012
Page 1 of 7




Chairman Pineda commented that this will take care of everyone coming in and wanting
a variance. He added that the user will be able to get what they want and the City will be
happy too. He added further that he loves the frequency of the message changing every
60 seconds. He asked the members if they wanted to move forward with the proposed
amendments and the members agreed to move forward.

B. St. Andrew Lutheran Church — 155 N. Prince Crossing Road, Sign Variance

Chairman Pineda asked if anyone was here from St. Andrew Lutheran Church. Mr. Mike
Riebe responded that he is here but he did not hear what was going on. Chairman Pineda
explained that the ordinance is going to be amended so the church can get the sign they
want. He added that the amendments will clear up the ordinance so variances will not be
needed. He added further that the amendments will make the end user and the City
happy with the finished product. Mr. Riebe commented that his biggest problem is
holding his contractor to the pricing he got six months ago. He added that he might have
to pay more for the sign now. Chairman Pineda commented that the amendments should
be approved by June. He noted that if the amendments are approved, the church does not
have to come back because a variance will not be needed. He noted further that then the
permit can be issued. Mr. Riebe stated that he appreciated that.

Alderman Dimas made a motion, seconded by Alderman Stout, to table the sign
variance for St. Andrew Lutheran Church to the June 11, 2012 Development
Committee meeting. Voting yea: Aldermen Dimas, Stout, Beifuss, Monroe, Pineda
and Smith. Voting nay: 0. Motion carried.

C. Seeking Direction to Negotiate a Contract — 151 W. Washington Street

Chairman Pineda stated that DGR withdrew their application today. He commented that
originally the City was allowing six months from November for proposals. He asked if
everyone would like to keep going forward and allow proposals until the end of May to
see if anyone is interested.

Alderman Beifuss commented that there were two developers but it is his understanding
that a letter of credit was required. Mr. Hupp stated that staff’s review of the two
proposals showed that DGR was the only one that evidenced experience with historic
structures, although limited experience, and specific evidence of financial capability. He
noted that the other proposal is relying on voluntary contributions to a charitable
organization and they have not shown that they have anything at this point. He added
that their contractor did not provide any evidence of work on historic structures so staff
would be concerned about proceeding with that proposal.

Chairman Pineda asked if the second proposal could be considered again if they came up
with the information required. Mr. Hupp responded yes, absolutely. Chairman Pineda
asked the members if they wanted to allow more time for developers to submit proposals.
The members agreed.

Development Committee Minutes
March 12, 2012
Page 2 of 7



Alderman Monroe stated that the City needs to let the residents know that we are really
trying to find a developer for the property.

D. West Washington Street Redevelopment Project — Revised Site Plan Presentation

Chairman Pineda requested staff to provide a brief overview. Mr. Hupp stated that he has
been working with Brad Winick from URS to pursue the direction given in November to
remove the police station from the site plan and to include the amended floor plan for the
community center. He added that Mr. Winick is here to make a presentation on the new
site plan.

Mr. Winick made a presentation per the attached report titled “Washington Street
Redevelopment Project, Development Committee Meeting, March 12, 2012.” His
presentation included: Project Recap I, Project Recap II, Guidance from the Nov. 1"
Presentation, What We’ve Been Doing Since Nov. 11"™ Current Site Plan, Comparing the
Nov. 11" & Current Site Plans, Provided Site Plan Components — I, Provided Site Plan
Components — I and Next Steps.

Chairman Pineda asked how much parking was in the first design compared to this
design. He noted that it looks like a lot more was added. Mr. Winick responded that the
parking is between mid-400s to low-500s. He added that it has not changed a lot.
Chairman Pineda commented that the retail across from the open green space was
eliminated. He added that the retail is important because the area needs to have a draw.
Mr. Winick responded that it could be added back in. He noted that it was done in part to
maximize the parking and in part to show the entrance to the community center.
Chairman Pineda noted that the configuration of the community center is different.

Mr. Gary Major responded that initially the park district designed a building for the
corner of Washington and Fremont because they were starting their process for the
referendum initiative and they wanted to show people what the components could be as
an example. He added that they thought in a perfect world, the corner would be a great
location but due to the topography, it turned out not to be a great location. He noted that
it became very apparent at this Committee’s discussion in November that the City wanted
the big buildings back further. He added that the building for the community center
shown on the first site plan was simply a place card designed by URS to indicate an
approximately 60,000 square foot rectangle. Mr. Major added further that the specific
components for the center would not fit into the rectangle shown on the site plan. He
commented that the building shown on the current site plan is the first design for the
center. Chairman Pineda asked if the square footage changed and Mr. Major responded
no.

Chairman Pineda asked Mr. Winick to discuss the Phase I Environmental Study and what
the Phase II Environmental Study will show. Mr. Winick responded that the Phase I
investigation looked at every component parcel on the site. He commented that his
colleagues found that almost every single parcel on the site had some known or very high

Development Committee Minutes
March 12, 2012
Page 3 of 7



likely potential environmental contamination. He noted that the 151 W. Washington
Street site is clean. He noted further that a more in-depth study is needed regarding the
environmental issues. Mr. Winick commented that now that they have a sense of what
they are looking for, his colleagues have a good knowledge of where they should do
some borings and what they should test for because it will vary for each site. He added
that further investigation is necessary. He added further that part of the grant application
the City has submitted is for some Brownfield funds to help fund the Phase I1
investigation. He noted that the award has been delayed a little this year. Mr. Winick
stated that the City probably will hear something in the next two or three months. He
commented that the funds can not be utilized until they are received in October. He
added that the investigation could mobilize quickly then as far as the drilling and that the
field work should take approximately 14 weeks. He added further that the Phase II
investigation could be done by spring of next year. He commented that that is not the
same as what we learned from the site or what do we do with the site. Mr. Winick stated
that the hope for the site is that you would be able to handle all the remediation on site
and not have to haul off material from the site. Chairman Pineda asked if the answers
from the environmental study were needed in order to apply for Brownfield Grants and
Mr. Hupp responded that the City has already applied for the grants. Mr. Winick noted
that the City applied for two Brownfield Grants, one for analysis and one for remediation.

Chairman Pineda commented that his neighbor is here and he had a conversation with her
regarding building a green building and ratings you can get for building a green building.
Ms. Laura Grodoski commented that she is LEED accredited. She added that she has
only begun to research the LEED Neighborhood Development information. She added
further that there is a lot of information out there and asked if the City has looked into
any incentives. Mr. Winick responded that if URS was hired to design the building, they
would encourage the City to go after a certain standard. He added that you can get points
for using certain type of materials, using a certain type of air quality system or hauling
off the construction debris. He added further that you can get a plaque for points. Mr.
Winick noted that there is a new LEED classification for Neighborhood Development,
which is more for planning than designing. He noted further that URS would be very
supportive of pursuing that and several of his colleagues have the special LEED
certification for Neighborhood Development. Chairman Pineda stated that he is very
interested in it.

Alderman Beifuss noted that the new proposed site plan shows more commercial closer
to the street near the entrance off Washington Street. He asked if the square footage of
commercial properties changed and Mr. Winick responded that it is a little bit less.
Alderman Beifuss commented that he liked the parking behind the buildings as it is in the
rest of the downtown. He noted that it is better for walking downtown. Alderman
Beifuss asked if the storm water has changed and Mr. Winick responded that it has not
changed but it also has not been designed yet. Alderman Beifuss commented that the
location of the parking garage was changed and an access drive to the garage that went
through the site has been removed. Mr. Winick commented that when the parking
structure was moved, the access drive could not go through the site. He added that the

Development Committee Minutes
March 12, 2012
Page 4 of 7



access drive could not make the drop off from Fremont to the parkway that goes through
the site because it is a very short road. He noted that it would make it a very expensive
and inefficient garage.

Chairman Pineda asked if the Tastee Freez property is impacted at all and Mr.Winick
responded no.

Alderman Connelly commented that for the parking garage, you can get to the upper
level off of Fremont and the lower level by the road through the site but you can not go
from the upper level to the lower level. Mr. Winick stated that that is correct. Alderman
Connelly stated that if you go into the upper level and there is no parking you have to
turn around to come out on Fremont to go to Washington or McConnell to get to the
lower level. Mr. Winick responded that that is correct. He added that it could be
mitigated with a ramp on the site but their feeling was that it would cost money and
require taking up some of the green space in the area.

Alderman Monroe commented that since Washington Street is a main road right through
West Chicago we should actively search now for some retail or restaurant developers to
get their input and possible financial help too. Mr. Winick commented that if there is a
recommended plan it could be brought to the ICSC conference as a conceptual plan to
find developers with interest. He added that with this level of detail on the site plan, the
plan could go outside of this Committee for people to look at all the different parcels and
we could have some follow-up discussions. Alderman Monroe stated that he would like
to do that because there is a lot of retail space but no one is in it. Mr. Hupp commented
that when he was in St. Charles the City did the First Street Redevelopment Project. He
added that it was different because it did not have the municipal facilities but St. Charles
was faced with a similar problem, they had land and they had a concept but did not have
a developer. He added further that they chose to put out an RFQ for developers to show
us what their plan would be for the area. Mr. Hupp stated that chances are the developers
would do things a little differently. He noted that the City would have limits, such as
including the public plaza, but also allow a developer some flexibility. He noted further
that would be the approach to take it to the next level to see a) if there is interest and b)
what suggestions they would have for this type of development to attempt to move it
forward.

Chairman Pineda stated that he gave his word that the plan would be open to the public
again. He commented that he would like the public to see this design and have the
opportunity to provide feedback. He noted that removing the police station from the
original site plan is a big change. Mr. Winick commented that he would be happy to
work with Mr. Hupp on the logistics of that meeting.

6. Unfinished Business — None.

7. New Business — None,

Development Committee Minutes
March 12, 2012
Page 5 of 7



8. Reports from Staff — None.
9. Adjournment

Alderman Stout made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Alderman Dimas. The members
unanimously agreed. Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 8:03 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Ericksen

Development Committee Minutes
March 12, 2012
Page 6 of 7



ZT0C CT Ydien
unaaN 21IWwo) wawdolana(

109044 Juswdo|anapaYy
199415 U013ulysepn



sdals 1XoN
ue|d 91S ualin)
;T T AON 22Uis SUlOp Ud3(q oA, M 1BYAA

uoljejuasald (1T AON 9yl woJd] aodueping

ue|d @}S/uoneasald ,zTIT AON

deosay 109lo4d

uoljeluasald s,3UlUany siyl



(Yied suield
sioul||] @Y3 "|oul) sailiuawe adedspue| pue shempeod allS —

UOIlUD1apP Ja1eMWI0]S pue Supjied paleys —
9oeds U243 2IAID d3Ue| Y —
(9]giseay JI ‘©woy J1I01SIY 193415 UOISUIYSEAN
‘M HmH ay1 3 10daQ peodjiey ay1) ssulp|ing 21101SIYy paulelay —
sa11s Allunjioddo yuswdojanap |[eldJaWwwo) —
Jo1ua) Allunwiwo) s,10131s1q Yded ayl —
lleH AuD —
zapnjoul |jim sndwe) jeddiunin ayL

91IS 193115
uo13uUIYSeAN ISOMN DJ40B-1 T~ pajquasse s,A11D ay3 uo sndwe)
|ledidiuniy e uejd 03 03ed1yd 1S9\ YHm Supjiom uaaq sey SyN

| -- deday 109loud



sisAjeue 13 SU11Sa] |EIUSWUOJIAUD JBynIny Jo) [esodoud

e pa11lwigns pue ‘guipuny |EIUSWUOIIAUS |euOllIppe

J0} uoneaijdde juesd vd3sn s,AuD ayi parioddns ‘sisAjeue
|erUuBWUOJIAUD 91S Adeutwi|aud papinoid sey SYN e

Sui@aw 9 lwwo) uawdolanag

ITOC ‘IT 4oqwanoN ay) Jo ued se p|ay SulloaN
d1|gNd B 1B S2AI1RUI]|e UR|d 9US paluasald 1se| SHN .

1| -- deday ubm._en_w



V Ue|d 3315

St

!

UITT 1oqUWSA0ON WOJS



9A10adsIad |elay - Y ue|d 91S



S1Jodxa |elUSWUOIIAUS |euld]ul

SHN Yum AjoA11eloge||0d }J0M 0] SNUIIU0)
siap|oyanjels Asy Jayro

pue 10111sId Y4ed @yl Yilim 31eJ0Qe||0d 01 anulluo) .
(suoilpzipnsin g-£ ubyl Jayind ‘mou Jof sayd1axs
ur y4om) uejd ais ayl auljal 01 diysiapes|

109foud s,A11D 9yl YUm dJom 01 9NUIUOD)
sndwe)

ledidiunAl 9yl WoJj UoI1e1S 921|0d 9yl SAOWY o

uolilejuasaldd 11T AON o9yl Wol} aJ3uepino



ue|d 91S Jua4un) ayl padojanaqg -

UMOIUMO(J 1Joddns J43119(

01 sndwe) [edidiunip 8yl JO uoilod yinos ay)
1e Supjied Jo Junowe ayl aziwixew 01 PBLIOMN e

1ulidloo) ulpjing Jajua)
Allunwiwio?) JuUaJind 1sow ay3 pajesodiodu] .
SaAlleUJId]|e ue|d 9}S YI13YS JO SalUas e }Jels
V1ISIg Yded 8 A1) YlM pamainal 13 paledald e

»TT "AON 22uIS SuloQ uaag aA, 9\ 1_Y/M



Current Site Plan

roeido sz

T




eaJe Supjied soeyns adieT
J21ud) Allunwwo)

lleH AuD
yoop Supjied |9A9|-7

‘sue|d 91S 1UaLIND 3 ;T T "AON 3yl Suliedwo)



(200ds 2jqpsn J5 000°GZ~ pUD §s 0000T~
Aq aspa.Jouj pjnoa juiidioof buip|ing Juawdojanap [D1212UWOI

ay1 ‘paipnouad jou si buipjing siya f| -buipjing 132415
uo3bUIYSOAA 1S9M IST Yl apnjoul 10u saop fs :a10p) ddeds
3|gesn Js 000°06< YHMm siulidiooy 3uip|ing Js 000 0€~ |BI0L —

SeaJe JuaWdo|aAap |eldJaWW0) 193]S CO”—wCEmm\s OM| o

Suip|ing |30}
1S +000°08~/3u11d100} J5 +000°09 ~ - 193U8) AUNWWO)

3uip|ing |e101 §s 000 0¥~/3u14d1004 §S 000°0C~ - [IBH AHD »

| -- Syjusuodwo) ue|d 1S PapIN0Id



adedspue|
oyl oE_ palesododul SpuOd UOITUSISP JO1EMUIIOIS PaJeys

Aemsiied [edidIuniA] Mau e Suipnjoul ‘SAempeodt ssadde alls

sndwe?) |[edDIUN|A

9Y3 1noysnoJyl paianeds mmumo_m dunyted adepns g €. pue
13UJ02 1SE3Y1INO0S Y] 1B X3P |9AD|-Z e Ul 08T~ -- |B10) sadeds
dunjied g6 SIpN|dUl Ue|d 21IS 1Ua1IN) 3yl -- subjied paleys

2oeds Suliayied JIAID a1de-T., Mau e s| aienbgs A1)

oSN |eldoJaWl02 10 PaUuOoISIAUS pue poulelal Si 10da( |IeY 92yl

| -- Sjusauodwo) ue|d 91IS PapINOI(



109loud aJinus ayjy Jusawindog .

sadewll
3ulp|ing |en1dacuo0d 13 ue|d 31IS 8yl Jo [erosdde [1ouno) AL SAI9I9Y .

9|NpPaYdIs
pue ue|d uollejuawajdwi ue dojanap 01 A11D a3yl YUM MJOM
S91eWI1S3 1500 uollelusawajduwl |9A9| |en1daduod dojaAaq .
ue|d 9IS |eulq{ 9yl jo suonezijensian g dojsnaqg .
sagew! Suip|ing jenidasuod [jeHd AlD 8yl 9zijeul] .
W13 -193uU0T]

S1Jadxa |ejusWuUOJIAULG |euldalul \WM_D Ulim =2]1e10qge||0d 0] aNUIlUO0)

syoaM Sulwod 3y} ul pue
Buluane s1yl panladal Xoeqpas) ayl uodn paseq ue|d allS ayl azijeuly .

W3] -11oysg

sdalS 1XoN



